
RECEIVED 

· , 09 SEP -4 ~M II, 52 

HEARiNGS CLERK 
EPA ~-I'lEGION 10 

BEFORE: TIfE 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


iN THE MAnER OF: ) 
) 

Nonpareil Corporation ) Docket No. EPCRA 10-2009-0198 
) 

Blackfoot, Idaho ) CONSENT AGREEMENT AND PINAL 
) ORDER 
) 

Respondent ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

L.AUTHORITY 

1.1. This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFOIl) is issued under the authority 

vested in the Administrator of the U.s. Environmental Protection Agency (,IEPAH
) by 

Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right~to-Know Act (EPCRA), 

42 U.S.C. § 11045, The Administrator has delegated the authomy to is.sue the Final Order 

contained in Pm v of this CAFO to the Regional Ad.ministrator of EPA Region 10, who in tum 

has redelcgatcd this authority to the Regional Judicia! Officer. 

1.2. Pursuant to Section 325 of EPeRA, and In accordance with § 22.13{b) of the 

"Consolidated Rules of Practlce Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties," 
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proceeding, which will conclude when the Final Order contained in Part V of this CAfO 

becomes effective. 

2.2. Respondent owns and operates the Teton Valley Ranch facility in Mountain 

Home, (daha, located at 475 E . 61L! South ("tne Facility"). 

~ 

2.3 The Facility which produces baked potato casseroles thai are frozen and packaged 

for retail sale, uses an ammonia refrigeration system. 

2.4. A concise statement of the factual basis for aJleging violations of EPCRA, 

together with specific references to the provisions oflhe Act and implementing regulations 

Respondent is alleged to have violated, appears in Part III ofthis CAFO. 

III . ALLEGATIONS 

3.1. Respondent is a corporation incorporated in the State of Idaho. 

3.2. Respondent is a "person" as that term is defined under Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 

42 U.S.C § 11049(7). 

3.3 The Facility is a "facility" as that term is defined under Section 329(4) of 

EPCRA,42 U.S.C § 11049(4). 

3.4. Section 312(0) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C § 11022(0), ond its implementing 

regulations al 40 C.F.R. Part 370 require the owner or operator of a faci lity, which is required by 
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the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) to prepare or have available a 

material safety data sheet (MSDS) for a hazardous chemical, to submit a completed Emergency 

and Hazardous Chemical Inventory Form (Tier I or Tier H as described in 40 CFR. Part 310) to 

the state emergency reSJXlnse commission (SERe), the local emergency plannIng committee 

(LEPC), and the fire department with jurisdiction Over the fa.cility by March 1, 1988, and 

annually thereafter, The form must contain the information required by Section 312(d) of 

EPCRA,42 U,S.c, § 1 !022(e), covering ail hazardous chemicals present at the facility at any 

one time during the precediog year in amounts equal to or exceoomg HJ,DOD pounds and ali 

extremely hazardous chemicr.ds present at the facHity at anx one time in amounts equal to or 

greater than 500 pounds or the threshold planning quantity designated by EPA at 40 C,FK Part 

355 Appendices A and B, whichever is lower. 

3.6. Anhydrous Ammonia is listed as a toxic and hazardous substance under OSHA 

regulations at 29 C.F.R. § 1910.1000, Table 2-1. 

3.7. OSHA requires Respondent to prepare, or have available, an MSDS for 

Anhydrous Ammonia. 

J.9. Anhydrous Ammonia is listed.as an "extremely hazardous substance'; under 

Sec"on 302 of EPCRA, 42 U.3.c' § 11002. Anhydrous Ammonia has a threshold pilltlning 

quantity (TPQ) of500 pounds, as provided at 40 C.F.R. Part 355, Appendix A . 

.3 to. During at least one period of time during calendar year 2006, Anhydrous 

Ammonia was present at the Faci!lty in an amount equa.l to or greater than the TP'Q. 
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3. 11 . Respondent did not submit to the SERe, LEPC and the fire department an 

Emergency and Hazardous Chemical Inventory Form including Anhydrous Ammonia for 

calendar year 2006 by March 1,2007. 

3.12. Under Section 325(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §I J045(b), EPA may assess a civil 

penalty for each day ofviolation of Section 304 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C § 11004 

IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT 

4.1 . Respondent admiLS the jurisdictional allegations contained in Part III of this 

CAFO. 

• 
4.2. Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations contained in 

Pan III of this CAFO. 

4 .3. Respondent expressly waives any rights to contest the allegations and to appeal 

the Final Order contained herein. 

4.4. The provisions of this CAFO shall bind Respondent and its agents, servants, 

employees, successors, and assigns. 

4.5. Except as provided in Paragraph 4.1 0., below, each party shall bear its own costs 

in bringing or defending this action. 

4.6. Based on Respondent's willingness to settle this matter without litigation, the 

nature of the violations, Respondent's agreement to perfonn a Supplemental Environmental 

Project ("SEP") . and other relevant factors, and in accordance with the Enforcement Response 

Policy Jor Sections 304, 311. and 312 oflhe Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-

Know Act and Sec/ion 103 of the Comprehensive Environmenfal Response. Compensation. and 
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Liability Acl, EPA has determined and Respondent agrees that an appropriate penalty to senle 

this action is $18,281.00. 

4.7. Respondent consents to the issuance afthe Final Order recited herein and to 

payment of the penalty cited in Paragraph 4.6 above within 30 days of the Effective Date of the 

Final Order. 

4 .8. Payment under this CAFO shall be made by cashier's check or certified check, Or 

money order made payable to the order of "U.S. Treasury" and mailed to the addresses below: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center ... 
P,O , Box 979077 
SL Louis, MO 63197-9000 

Respondent shall note on the check the tille and docket number afthis case. 

4 .9. Respondent shall submit a photocopy of the check described above to: 

Regional Hearing Clerk. 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 10, Suite 900 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Mail Stop ORC-ISS 
Seattle, Washington 98101 

Suzanne Powers 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 10 
Washington Operations Office 
300 Desmond Drive S,E" Suite 102 
Lacey, Washington 98S03 

4.10. Should Respondent fail to pay the penalty assessed by this CAFO in full by its 

due date, the entire unpaid balance of penalty and accrued interest shall become immediately due 
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and owing, Should such a failure to pay occur, Respondent may be subject to a civil actIon 

under HeRA Section 325(1), 42 U.S.c. § 11045(0, to collect My unpaid penalties, together 

with interest, handling charges, and nonpayment penalties, as set forth below, 

4, II. Should Respondent fail to pay the penalty assessed by this CAFO in full by Its 

due date, Respondent shaH also be responsible for payment of the following amounLS; 

a. Interest. Any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at the 

rateeSlabli,hed by the Secretary of the rr.asury pursuant to 31 U.S,C. § 3717(.)(1) from the 

effective date of the Final Order contained herein, provided. however, tbat flO interest sbaU be 

payable on llny portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within 30 days of the effective date of 

the Final Order contained berein, 

b, H.ndling Ch.J![ll£. Pursuantto 31 U.S.c. § 37 t 7(0)(1), a monthly handling 

char~e of $15 shall be paid ifany portion of tbe assessed penalty is more than 30 days past due, 

c. Non~ayment Penal~ Pursuant to 31 U.S,c' § 3717(e)(2), a nonpayment 

penalty of6% per annum shall be paid on any portion of the assessed penalty that is more than 

90 days past due~ which nonpayment penalty shall be calculated as of the date the underlying 

penalty first becomes past due. 

4.12" Respondent agrees to impiement a SEt' consisting of the purchase and installation 

of five (5) leak free hermetically sealed pumps to replace the five (5) Comet! 2eB refrigerant 

recirculation pumps to pump liquid ammonia to evaporators inside the facility, Respondent shan 

implement and complete the Sci' within 120 days oftbc Effective Date aftois CAFO, in 

accordance with all provisions described in this Consent Agreement and Attachment A to this 
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CAFD. The Parties agree that this SEP is intended to secure significant environmental benefits 

by reducing the risk of a release of atlhydrous ammonia into the environment. 

4,13, Respondent's deadline to perform the SEP shall be excused or extended if such 

performance is prevented or delayed solely by events which constitute a force Majeure event A 

Force Majeure event is defined as any event arising from causes beyond the reasonable control 

of Respondent, including its employees) agents, consultants, and contractors, which could not be 

overcome by due diligence and which delays or prevents the performance of the SEP within the 

specified time period. A Force Majeure event does not include, inter alia, increased costs of 

performance, changed economic circumstances:.. changed Jabor relations, nonnal precipitation or 

climate events, changed circumstances arising out of tbe sale, lease, or other transfer or 

conveyance of title or ownership or possession of a site) or failure to obtain federal, state, or local 

4.14. The cost to Respondent of imp!ementing the Sf? in accordance with the 

specifications set forth in Para!,rraph 4.12. above and as further detailed in Attachment A of this 

CAFO shaH be not less than $77,210.00 Respondent shall include documentation of tile 

expenditures made in connection with the SEP as part of the SEP Completion Report, 

4.15. Respondent hereby certifies that, as ofeMe date Qfthis Consent Agreement, 

Respondent is not required to perform or develop the SEP by any federal, state, or local law or 

regutation~ nor is Respondent required to perform or deve!op the SEP by any mher agreement, 

under a grant, or as injunctive relief in any other case. Resp<:lndent further certifies that it has (jot 

received, and is not presently negotiating to receive, credit in any other enforcement action for 

in the Matter of: Nonpareil Corporalioo US. Envlronmental Protection Agency 
Consent Agreement And fiflal Order 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900 
Page 7 ¢f I) Seattle, Washington 98! o! 
Docket No. EPCllA-!v-2O(J9..o1')8 (206) 553-1037 

http:77,210.00


, ' 

the SEP. For Federal income tax purposes, Respondent agrees that it will neither capitalize in 

inventory or basis nor deduct any cost or expenditures incurred in performing this SEP. 

4.16. Respondent shall submit a SEP Completion Report to EPA within 120 days of the 

Effective Date of the CAFO. The SEP Completion Report shall contain the following 

infonnation : 

a. A description of the SEP as implemented; 

b. Itemized costs, documented by copies of purchase orders atId receipts or 

cancelled checks; 

c. Certification that the SEP has been fully implemented pursuant to ~e 

provisions of this CAFO; 

d. A description of any operating problems encountered and the solutions 

ther~to; and 

e. A description of the environmental and public health benefits resulting 

from implementation of the SEP. 

4.17_ Respondent agrees Ihal failure to submit the SEP Completion Report required by 

Paragraph 4.16, above, shall be deemed a violation of this CAFO and Respondent shall become 

liable for stipulated penalties pursuant to this CAFO. 
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4, is. Unless otherwise Instructed in writing by EPA, Respondent shall submit all 

notices and reports required by this CAFO by first class mall, overnight mail, or hand delivery 

to: 

Suzanne Powers 

(IS. Environmental Protection Agency 

Region 1Q 

Wasbington Operations Office 

300 Desmon., Drive SE, Suite 102 

Lacey, WA 98503 


4,19. Respondent agrees that EPA may inspect Respondent's records related to the SEP 

at any reasonable time in order to confirm that the SEP is being undertaken in conformity with 
< 

the representations made herein. 

4,20. Respondent shall maintain legible copies of documentation of the underlying data 

for documents or repol'ts submitted to EPA pursuant to this CAFO umil the SEP Completion 

Report is accepted pursuant to Para.graph 4.21., and Respondent shall provide the documentation 

of any such underlying data to EPA within 15 days of a written request for such information. [n 

all documents or reports including, without limitation, the SEP Completion Report submItted to 

EPA pursuant to this CAFO, Respondent shall> by a corporate officer, sign and certify under 

penalty of law that the information contained in such a document or report is true, accurate, and 

not misleading by signing the following statement: 

I certify under penalty of law that f have examined and am familiar with the 
information submitted in this document and all attachments and that., based on my inqu,lfY 
of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, (believe that 
the information is true, accurate, and complete. ram aware that there are significant 
penalties for submJtting false information, including the possibility of fines and 
imprisonment. 
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4.21. Following receipi of the SEP Completion Report described in Paragraph 4.16 

above. EPA will do one of the following: 0) accept the Report; Oi) reject the Report, notify 

Respondent, in writing, of deficiencies in the Report and provide Respondent an additional 30 

days in which to correct any deticiencies; or (iii) reject the Report and seek stipulated peoalties 

in accordance with Paragraph 4.23, 

4,22. In the event the SEP is not compieted as contemplated by this CAFO and this 

failure was not caused solelY by events which constitute a foree Majeure as dtfined by 

Paragraph 4.13., above, then stipulated penalties shaU be due and payable by Respondent 10 EPA 

in accordance with Paragraph 4.23., below, Scheduies herein may be extended based- upon 

mutua! written agreement of the parties. 

4.23. In the event that Respondent fails to comply with any of the terms or provisions 

of thi,s CAFO relating to !be perfonnance of the SEP described above and/or to the extent that 

the actual expenditures for the SEP do not equal or exceed the cost of the SEP described in this 

CAFD) Respondent shall be liable for stipulated penalties according to the provisions set forth 

below: 

a. for a SEP which has not been completed satisfactorily pursuant to this CAFO, 

Respondent shall pay a stipulated penaJty in the amount of $77,2! 0.00, less the amount actually 

expended on the SEP. 

b. For fallure to submit the SEP Completion Report as required by Paragraph 

4.16" above, Respondent shall pay a stipulated penalty in the amount 51 00.00 for each day after 

the report is due untillhe report is recetved by EPA, not to exceed $2,500.{)0. 
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4.24. Stipulated penalties under Paragraph 4.23., above, shall begin to accrue on the day 

after performance is due, and shall continue to accrue through the final day of satisfactory 

completion of the activity, subject to the maximum set forth in Paragraph 4.23.b., above. 

4.25 Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties within 15 days of receipt of a wrinen 

demand by EPA for such penalties. Payment shall be in accordance with the provisions of 

Paragraph 4.8. , above. Interest and late charges shall be paid as SUIted in Paragraph 4. 11 , above. 

4.26. Except as provided in Paragraph 4.30., below, nothing in the CAPO shall be 

construed as prohibiting, altering, or in any way limiting the ability of EPA to seek any other 

remedies or sanctions available by vinue of Respondent'§'violation of this agreement or of the 

statutes and regulations upon which this agreement is based. or for Respondent's violation of any 

applicable provision of law. 

4.27. Any public statement.. oral or written, in print, film, or other media made by 

Respondent making reference to the SEP shall include the following language: "This project 

was undertaken in connection with the settlement ofan administrative enforcement action taken 

by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency under the "Emergency Planning and Conununity 

RighH<rKnow Act." 

4.28. This CAFO shall not relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply with all 

applicable provisions of federal, state, or local law, nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or 

determination of, any issue related to any federal, state, or local penn it, nor shall it be construed 

to constitute EPA approval of the equipment .or technology installed by Respondent in 

connection with the SEP under the tenns of this CAFO. 
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4.29. Respondent represents that it is duly authorized to execute this CAFO and that the 

party signing this CAFO on its behalf is duly authorized to bind Respondent to !.he terms of this 

4.30. Compliance with all the terms and conditions of this CAFO shall result in fu ll 

settlement and satisfacti on of all claims for penalties alleged in Se<:tion III above . 

STIPULATED AND AGREED: 


FOR NONPAREIL CORPORATION 


~~-
Signature 

Print Name:r,. d\ &....,\r,tt ~ 


Title: s..~C\1 ee; 0' J't\ca'J'\Cl, ~ r 


. 0 

FOR U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 10 


Dated :_-----cyr-0~~~j'4Z'------
Iski, Director 

Hance and Enforcement 
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V. FINAL ORDER 

5.1. The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement are hereby ratified and 

incorporated by reference into this Final Order. Respondent is hereby ordered to comply with 

the tenns of seNlement contained in the Consent Agreement. 

5.2. This CAFO constitutes a settlement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties 

pursuant to EPCRA for the particular violations alleged in Part III, above. In accordance with 

40 C.F.R. § 22.31 (a), nothing in this CAFO shall affecf the right of EPA or the United States to 

pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of 

law. This CAFO does not waive, extinguish. or otherwise affect Respondent's obligations to 

comply with all applicable provisions of the Act and regulations and pennits issued thereunder. 

This Final Order shalt become effective upon filing. 

SO ORDERED this 'I"'"day of ~ , 2009 
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Attachment A 

IN THE MAITER OK NONPAREIL CORPORA,TION. 

EPA DOCKET NO, EPCRAIO·2009·0198 


SOPPLEMENTAL E:-lVIRONMENTAL PROJECT (SEP) 


Refrigerant Recirculation Pump Replacement Project 

Nonpareil COrp<:lration win replace five Cornell ZeB refrigerant recirculation pumps at 
the Teton Volley Ranch facility located at 475 6th South, Mountain Home, Idaho, 
These pumps pwnp liquid ammoniA to evaporators inside the facility. The current pumps 
are mecharucal and as such have a potential for ammonia leaks from a possible 
mechanical failure, which could be severe. Nonpareil will replace these mechanical 
pumps with Teikoku canned motor pumps. The Teikoku pumps have double 
containment for fluid control and are able to handle toxlc, explosive, hazardous and 
corrosive fluids without any possibility of emissions into the environment. The Teikoku 
pumps are explosion proof and able to handle pressure conditions up to 5000 pSI" 

The replacement .of the exis1ing pumps will secure significant environmental benetits by 
improving the integrity of the system and significantly reduce the risk of a release of 
anhydrous ammonia into the environment. The estimated cost of the replacement ofthe 
Cornell pumps with the Tcikoku pumps is about $77,210.00, as detalled on the next two 
pages. 

Following is a more detailed description of the scope ofproject and the estimated cost: 

As part of this Refrigerant Recirculation Pump Replacement Project, Nonpareil 
Corporation will: 

• 	 Arrange for a t:rnined PennaCold service technician to remove ammonia from the 
Clment vessels. 

• 	 Purchase and install five new Teikolru ammonia pumps to replace the existing 
Cornell pumps. 

• 	 Install the necessary piping to connect the cooling line on each pump 

• 	 Install the necessary piping to provide the proper size minimum flow bypass lines 

• 	 Purchase and install any necessary steel to securely mount the new pumps 

• 	 Pressure-test the Installations 

• 	 Prime newly installed piping with red oxide primer 

• 	 Repair piping insulation where necessary 

• 	 Place new pumps in service and test/adjust operation. 
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Attachment A 


PermlCcld Etlllnnt1nc. tnt.. 

PmJ~Ettfr!lm FtlmI 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undmigned certifies that the original of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT 
AND FINAL ORDER in In the Matter of: NONPAREIL CORPORATION, DOCKET 
NO.: EPCRA-\0-2009-0198 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on September 4, 2009. 

On September 4, 2009 the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the 
document was delivered to; 

Bob Hartman, Esquire 

US Environmental Protection Agency 

1200 Sixth Avenue, ORC-l S8 

Suite 900 

Seattle, WA 98101 


Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned 
document was placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt on September 4, 2009, to: 

Mr. Brett Suthers 

Engineering & Environmental Manager 

Nonpareil Corporalion 

40 N 400 West 

Blackfoot, lD 83221 


DATED this 4" day of September 2009. 


